

March 14, 2003
No. 14

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Web Site Address: www.gencourt.state.nh.us



Legislative

SENATE CALENDAR

REPORTS, HEARINGS, MEETINGS, NOTICES

**THE SENATE WILL MEET IN SESSION ON
THURSDAY, MARCH 20, 2003 AT 10:00 A.M.**

LAID ON THE TABLE

SB 154, relative to landlord access to rental properties. 3/13/03, pending motion Floor Amendment (0622s), Public Affairs, SJ 8, pg. 94.

SCR 1, urging a study of the operating efficiency of state government. 3/6/03, pending motion OTP, Internal Affairs, SJ 7, pg. 71

REPORTS

EDUCATION

SB 55-FN, raising the age at which a child may terminate his or her public education.

Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 2-0

Senator O'Hearn for the committee.

SB 69-FN-A, establishing an elementary or secondary teacher education and nursing education career incentive program within the postsecondary education commission and making an appropriation therefor.

Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 5-0

Senator Larsen for the committee.

SB 108-FN-L, relative to charter schools.

Re-refer to committee, Vote 3-0

Senator Green for the committee.

SB 118-FN-A, establishing a ladders to literacy program and making an appropriation therefor.

Re-refer to committee, Vote 4-0

Senator O'Hearn for the committee.

SB 166, establishing a committee to study methods for the state to create incentives for school districts to provide mentoring for beginning teachers.

Ought to Pass, Vote 5-0

Senator Foster for the committee.

SB 195, combining the career incentive program and the nursing leveraged scholarship loan program within the department of postsecondary education.

Inexpedient to Legislate, Vote 5-0

Senator O'Hearn for the committee.

ENERGY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

SB 105-FN, establishing state appliance and equipment energy efficiency standards.

Re-refer to committee, Vote 5-0

Senator Below for the committee.

ENVIRONMENT

SB 89, relative to encouraging the use of biosolids and short paper fiber in road construction projects.

Inexpedient to Legislate, Vote 4-0

Senator Johnson for the committee.

SB 167, relative to indoor air quality assessment in public school buildings.

Inexpedient to Legislate, Vote 3-2

Senator Prescott for the committee.

SB 185, relative to reducing mercury in automobiles.

Inexpedient to Legislate, Vote 3-2

Senator Johnson for the committee.

EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENTS & ADMINISTRATION

SB 128-FN, transferring the bureau of vital records and health statistics from the department of health and human services to the department of state.

Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 2-1

Senator Prescott for the committee.

SB 226-L, increasing the homestead exemption.

Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 3-0

Senator Peterson for the committee.

INTERSTATE COOPERATION

SB 215-FN, relative to the use of prerecorded telephone messages for political advocacy.

Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 4-0

Senator Sapareto for the committee.

PUBLIC AFFAIRS

SB 20, relative to the qualifications for the property tax exemption for the disabled.

Re-refer to committee, Vote 4-0

Senator Barnes for the committee.

SB 92-FN, regulating home improvement contractors.

Inexpedient to Legislate, Vote 4-0

Senator Morse for the committee.

SB 192-FN, relative to domicile for persons needing assistance.

Inexpedient to Legislate, Vote 4-0

Senator Roberge for the committee.

SB 228, relative to the preservation of historic barns and similar historic agricultural structures by municipalities.

Re-refer to committee, Vote 4-0

Senator Roberge for the committee.

PUBLIC INSTITUTIONS, HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES

SB 163-FN, relative to the procedures of the health services planning and review board.

Ought to Pass, Vote 4-1

Senator O'Hearn for the committee.

SB 202-FN-A, relative to funding for kidney dialysis patients and making an appropriation therefor.

Ought to Pass, Vote 4-1

Senator Martel for the committee.

SB 216-FN-A, relative to the developmental services priority waiting list and making an appropriation therefor.

Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 3-2

Senator Martel for the committee.

TRANSPORTATION

SB 142-FN, relative to advertisements on utility poles and highway signs.

Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 5-0

Senator Below for the committee.

SB 182, relative to releasing information from motor vehicle records.

Inexpedient to Legislate, Vote 4-1

Senator Martel for the committee.

SB 196, establishing a committee to study the inspection and fees for sanitary transportation of seafood.

Inexpedient to Legislate, Vote 5-0

Senator Morse for the committee.

WAYS & MEANS

SB 102-FN, relative to the computation of tax on certain telecommunications services under the communications services tax.

Ought to pass with amendment, Vote 3-2

Senator D'Allesandro for the committee.

AMENDMENTS

Senate Education

March 13, 2003

2003-0710s

04/10

Amendment to SB 55-FN

Amend the bill by replacing sections 2-4 with the following:

2 Pupils; Compulsory Attendance. Amend RSA 193:1, IV to read as follows:

IV. ~~[Any]~~ ***Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, any*** child ~~[at least 16]~~ ***under 18*** years of age ~~[and under 18 years of age]~~ ***who has not attained sufficient credit to receive a high school diploma or its equivalent, and*** who wishes to terminate such child's public or nonpublic education prior to graduating from high school shall do so only after a conference with the principal, or designee. ***A school district shall develop a policy to permit withdrawal under this paragraph.*** The principal shall request a conference with the parent, guardian, or other custodian. Written approval of withdrawal must be received from such child's parent, guardian, or other person residing in the state and having custody or charge of such child. The written approval shall be dated and the signature witnessed by the principal of the school where the child is in attendance, or the principal's designee.

3 Truant Officers; Duties. Amend RSA 189:36 to read as follows:

189:36 Duties. Truant officers shall, when directed by the school board, enforce the laws and regulations relating to truants and children ~~[between the ages of 8]~~ ***at least 6 years of age*** and ~~[16]~~ ***under 18 years of age*** not attending school and without any regular and lawful occupation; and the laws relating to the attendance at school of children ~~[between the ages of 8]~~ ***at least 6 years of age*** and ***under 18 years of age***; and shall have authority without a warrant to take and place in school any children found employed contrary to the laws relating to the employment of children, or violating the laws relating to the compulsory attendance at school of children under the age of 18 years, and the laws relating to child labor.

4 Pupils; Bylaws as to Nonattendance. Amend RSA 193:16 to read as follows:

193:16 Bylaws as to Nonattendance. Districts may make bylaws, not repugnant to law, concerning habitual truants and children ~~[between the ages of]~~ **at least 6 years of age** and ~~[16]~~ **under 18 years of age** not attending school and not having a regular and lawful occupation, and to compel the attendance of such children at school; failure to comply with such bylaws shall constitute a violation for each offense.

Senate Education

March 13, 2003

2003-0709s

04/10

Amendment to SB 69-FN-A

Amend the title of the bill by replacing it with the following:

AN ACT combining the career incentive program and the nursing leveraged scholarship loan program within the department of postsecondary education, and establishing a workforce incentive program within the department of postsecondary education, and making an appropriation therefor.

Amend the bill by replacing all after the enacting clause with the following:

1 New Subdivision; Workforce Incentive Program. Amend RSA 188-D by inserting after section 18-e the following new subdivision:

Workforce Incentive Program

188-D:18-f Workforce Incentive Program.

I. The postsecondary education commission shall administer the workforce incentive program in accordance with state statutes and accounting procedures. The program shall include a forgivable loan component and a loan repayment component. The commission shall have the authority to:

- (a) Conduct the programs authorized under this subdivision.
- (b) Receive and disburse moneys in accordance with this subdivision.
- (c) Make application for and receive available federal, public, or private funds.

(d) Adopt rules, pursuant to RSA 541-A, to carry out components of the program, including establishing a reasonable maximum amount of money provided to a recipient under the program, a reasonable frequency of such loans, setting minimum qualifications of applicants, determining the terms of repayment and a schedule and amount of loan repayment, making grants, and paying loan incentives under this subdivision.

- (e) Maintain such records and submit such reports as may be required.

II. Application for and disbursement of all moneys shall be made in the form and manner designated by the postsecondary education commission. No moneys may be disbursed by the postsecondary education commission under this subdivision until the postsecondary education commission has adopted rules under subparagraph I(d), and has filed such rules with the fiscal committee of the general court and the governor and council.

188-D:18-g Forgivable Loans.

I. Financial assistance in the form of a forgivable loan shall be provided to qualified individuals who are residents of this state and need such assistance to attend education programs approved by the commission. The loans shall be for education in programs given in New Hampshire, which prepare recipients for careers in shortage areas as determined by the commission.

II. Recipients shall be chosen only on the basis of financial need. Each loan recipient shall sign a note to the state treasurer for the amount of each payment. The commission shall require recipients to agree in writing to work in the shortage area for which funds were received in New Hampshire for a specified period following completion of training.

III. Educational institutions which are eligible for receipt of money provided to students under this subdivision shall match funds provided by the state in order to receive such money. The total amount of matching funds shall not exceed any amount provided by the state during each fiscal year. Such matching funds shall be provided in addition to any other sums provided by the state.

IV. The loans shall be paid through the financial aid office of the school in which the recipient is enrolled. The commission shall establish the maximum amount of money to be provided to a student and the frequency of such loans for completion of studies over the course of training, provided that such amount and frequency shall be reasonable.

188-D:18-h Repayment of Forgivable Loans.

I. The commission shall establish repayment schedules that reflect the differing career demands of the shortage areas. All repayment schedules shall contain a component that allows for repayment through service in New Hampshire for a specified period of time.

II. If the note is not cancelled because of service, the recipient shall repay the loan within 2 years after withdrawing from, or completing the training program or from the inception of monetary repayment.

III. The commission shall have the authority to enter into contracts for the administration of the repayment provisions of this program.

IV. If a recipient refuses to repay a loan, the commission, or its designee, shall turn the account over to the appropriate collection agency.

V. The state treasurer shall credit all loan repayments to the forgivable loan fund for use under this program. Loan repayments credited to the loan fund shall be in addition to any other moneys appropriated to that fund.

VI. Nothing in this subdivision shall be construed to alter any rights or obligations incurred under RSA 326-B relative to the granting and repayment of scholarship loans.

VII. A recipient shall not be considered in violation of the repayment schedule if he or she is:

- (a) Engaged in a course of study, at least on a half-time basis, at an institution of higher education;
- (b) Serving on active duty as a member of the armed services of the United States, serving as a member of VISTA, the Peace Corps, or Americorps, for a period not to exceed 3 years;
- (c) Temporarily totally disabled, as established by sworn affidavit of a qualified physician, for a period not to exceed 3 years; or
- (d) Unable to secure employment by reason of the care required by a disabled spouse, child or parent for a period not to exceed 12 months.

VIII. To qualify for any of the exceptions in paragraph VII of this section, a recipient shall notify the commission of such claim to the exception and provide supporting documentation as required by the postsecondary education commission.

IX. During the time the recipient qualified for any of the exceptions in paragraph VII of this section, such recipient need not make the repayments required under paragraph II of this section and the postsecondary education commission shall extend the 2-year repayment period established under paragraph II of this section by a period equal to the length of time a recipient meets any of the conditions listed in paragraph VII of this section, or if a recipient's inability to complete the loan repayments within this 2-year period, because of a financial condition, has been established to the satisfaction of the postsecondary education commission.

X. The commission, or its designee, shall cancel a recipient's repayment obligation if it determines that he or she is:

- (a) Permanently totally disabled, as established by an affidavit of a qualified physician; or
- (b) Deceased as established by a death certificate or other evidence deemed conclusive under state law.

XI. The commission shall cancel a recipient's repayment obligation when the recipient has received relief under federal bankruptcy laws only if the recipient's loans under Title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965 have been cancelled as a result of that bankruptcy.

XII. The commission, or its designee, shall have the power to close the accounts of recipients who have completed their repayment obligation either through service or monetary repayment, and deem accounts as uncollectable if all reasonable means of collection have been exhausted.

188-D:18-i Loan Repayment Component.

I. The commission shall repay a percent of loan debt for recipients based on each complete year of qualifying service in a shortage area.

II. The commission, or its designee, shall determine the maximum amount of repayment an individual shall be eligible to receive, and the qualifying service to be covered under this section.

III. Only loan debt that was incurred as a result of postsecondary education and which were part of a financial aid award shall be eligible for repayment.

2 Applicability. Loans granted and notes signed under the career incentive program or the nursing leveraged scholarship loan program, prior to their repeal by section 3 of this act shall be enforced in accordance with the original terms of such loans or notes.

3 Application of Receipts; Loan Fund. RSA 6:12, I(tttttt) is repealed and reenacted to read as follows:

(tttttt) Moneys deposited in the postsecondary education loan fund under RSA 188-D:18-h.

4 Higher Education Corporations; Reports Required. Amend RSA 292:8-kk to read as follows:

292:8-kk Reports Required. When any institution of higher learning ceases the regular conduct of instruction, either temporarily or permanently, whether or not the corporation is dissolved, the academic record, or a legible, certified copy thereof, of each student who has been registered for instruction at the institution shall be forwarded to the postsecondary education commission together with an explanation of the institution's credit and grading system. The postsecondary education commission shall preserve these records and upon request of the individual concerned, shall furnish a certified copy, or reasonable number of such copies, of the individual's record. The fee for each record so furnished to be paid to the commission shall be [\$2 per copy of a student transcript] ***a reasonable fee based on average fees collected by United States institutions.*** Said fees shall be credited to the appropriation for the commission.

5 Repeal. The following are repealed:

I. RSA 188-D:18, relative to the career incentive program.

II. RSA 188-D:18-a - 188-D:18-e, relative to the nursing leveraged scholarship loan program.

6 Appropriation. The sum of \$300,000 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2004 is hereby appropriated to the postsecondary education commission to fund the workforce incentive program set forth in this act. The governor is authorized to draw a warrant for said sum out of any money in the treasury not otherwise appropriated.

7 Effective Date. This act shall take effect 60 days after its passage.

2003-0709s

AMENDED ANALYSIS

This bill consolidates the career incentive loan program and the nursing leveraged scholarship loan program into the workforce incentive program which contains a forgivable loan component and a loan repayment program for individuals who work in designated shortage areas. The bill also makes an appropriation to the department of postsecondary education for the purposes of the workforce incentive program.

Senate Ways and Means

March 13, 2003

2003-0715s

09/10

Amendment to SB 102-FN

Amend RSA 82-A:2, V(e) as inserted by section 2 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

(e) Charges for services which are not subject to tax under RSA 82-A to the extent that the charges for such services are disaggregated and separately identified from other charges on the customer's bill, or in instances where the provider does not separately list charges for taxable and non-taxable communication services, such charges shall be subject to the taxes imposed by this chapter, unless the provider can reasonably identify charges not subject to such tax from its books and records kept in the ordinary course of business. A taxpayer may not rely upon the non-taxability of charges for telecommunications services unless the taxpayer's provider separately states the charges for non-taxable telecommunications services from taxable charges or the provider elects, after receiving written notice from the taxpayer in the form required by the provider, to provide verifiable data based upon the provider's books and records that are kept in the regular course of business that reasonably identify the non-taxable charges;

Amend the bill by replacing section 4 with the following:

4 Communications Services Tax; Definition; Place of Primary Use. RSA 82-A:2, XXI is repealed and reenacted to read as follows:

XXI. "Place of primary use" means the street address representative of where the taxpayer's use of the telecommunications service primarily occurs, which must be:

(a) Either the residential street address or the primary business street address of the taxpayer; and

(b) In the case of mobile telecommunications services, within the licensed service area of the home service provider.

Amend the bill by replacing section 8 with the following:

8 Applicability. This act shall apply to bills issued on or after January 1, 2004; provided, however, in the case of private communications services, if information on mileage is not available, the department of revenue administration may allow the application of the apportionment rules in RSA 82-A:2, XIII to prior periods and provided further, in the case of a post-paid calling service, the carrier shall be allowed a transition period from January 1, 2004 through June 30, 2004 in which to change its tax systems to conform with the provisions of this act.

Senate Executive Departments and Administration

March 13, 2003

2003-0678s

01/09

Amendment to SB 128-FN

Amend the bill by replacing all after the enacting clause with the following:

1 Statement of Intent. This act establishes a division within the department of state that will be responsible for the regulation of vital records and the dissemination of vital records data. This act maintains the right of the department of health and human services to have full access to vital records information as set forth in RSA 126:24-c. By transferring the bureau of vital records and health statistics from the department of health and human services to the department of state, the general court recognizes that the same state department that regulates other records of the state shall also regulate vital records.

2 New Chapter; Vital Records Administration. Amend RSA by inserting after chapter 5-B the following new chapter:

CHAPTER 5-C VITAL RECORDS ADMINISTRATION

5-C:1 Definitions. In this chapter:

I. "Department" means the department of state.

II. "Director" or "registrar" means the director of vital records administration who shall also be known as the registrar of vital records.

III. "Division" means the division of vital records administration, department of state.

5-C:2 Division of Vital Records Administration Established.

I. There is established within the department a division of vital records administration under the supervision of a director of vital records administration. The secretary of state shall select the director of vital records administration. In addition to the title of director, the director shall also be known as the registrar of vital records. The director of vital records administration shall be academically and technically qualified to hold the position. The director shall be a citizen of this state or become a citizen of this state within one year of the director's appointment.

II. The director shall:

(a) Be responsible for the day-to-day operations of the division.

(b) Plan and provide operational resources as available, for the establishment and support of a state-wide vital records registration, issuance and dissemination program.

5-C:3 Declaration of Policy and Purpose.

I. The New Hampshire constitution identifies the office of the secretary of state as the keeper of the records of the state.

II. The division shall provide access to vital records and vital records data while assuring the privacy of all New Hampshire citizens.

5-C:4 Registrar of Vital Records; Privacy; Duties.

I. The secretary of state shall appoint the registrar of vital records for the state who, under the supervision of the secretary, shall have charge of the vital records of the state and shall enforce the provisions of law in relation to them.

II. In collecting information, prime consideration shall be given to the protection of the privacy of the individuals about whom information is given. The secretary of state shall adopt rules to ensure that, when information is collected, the minimum of data shall be collected to accomplish a specific purpose. The secretary of state shall also adopt rules to ensure that no information shall be available to unauthorized personnel, that only the minimum be made available to authorized personnel, and that no information that could possibly adversely affect an identified individual be made public. Notwithstanding the provisions of this paragraph, the department of health and human services shall have access to vital records information in accordance with the provisions of RSA 126:24-c.

III. The division is designated the vital statistics center for New Hampshire in accordance with section 306(e) of the Public Health Services Act (42 USC 242k(e)). The division is authorized to collect, compile, coordinate and disseminate all vital records information, while adhering to the privacy requirement of paragraph II. The division shall have the power to enter into contractual agreements to the end that costs related to the collection of information shall be defrayed for outside agencies to the extent that funds are available from any source for such purpose.

5-C:5 Statistical Forms.

I. The secretary of state shall adopt rules relative to facts which must be recorded relative to births, marriages, divorces, deaths, and fetal deaths. The registrar for the state shall furnish to sextons, to clergymen and others authorized to solemnize marriages, to physicians, town clerks, clerks of the superior courts, responsible institutions, and clerks of the Society of Friends, a copy of this chapter and suitable forms for recording facts as required by the department of state.

II. In addition to the secretary of state, any interested state agency or individual may request that additional data fields be added to any of the vital records statistical forms. Such requests shall be granted upon meeting the following minimum requirements:

(a) Any individual and any state agency, with the exception of the department of health and human services, shall provide a description of need for the additional data fields.

(b) Any individual and any state agency, with the exception of the department of health and human services, shall provide a business plan describing how the additional data fields will be used.

(c) All individuals and all state agencies shall demonstrate that they have adequate resources to pay for software changes to the secretary of state's automated data collection system including development, testing, training of users, maintenance, and replacement of statistical forms.

(d) All individuals and all state agencies shall provide assurances that any statistical form changes shall not adversely affect any of the data contracts that the secretary of state maintains.

5-C:6 Recordkeeping. The secretary of state may adopt rules to secure uniformity and efficiency in the preparation, transcription, collection, compilation and preservation of facts in relation to births, marriages, divorces, fetal deaths and deaths. In the case of fetal deaths, the name of parent or parents and the name of the child shall not be divulged except by the written consent of the parent or parents. The rules also may include provisions for so-called delayed certificates of birth, the registration of children of unknown parentage, the filing of additional certificates after the legitimization of children and other matters relative to vital statistics.

5-C:7 Rules. The secretary of state shall establish a manual of uniform rules necessary and proper to effectuate the purpose of this chapter. Any rules adopted pursuant to this chapter shall not be subject to the provisions of RSA 541-A.

5-C:8 Rulemaking. The secretary of state shall adopt rules relative to:

I. The confidentiality afforded to individuals under RSA 5-C:4, II.

II. Guidance and direction in the collection of information by data collectors under RSA 5-C:4, III.

III. The statistical forms under RSA 5-C:5.

IV. Securing uniformity and efficiency in the preparation, transcription, collection, compilation, and preservation of facts in relation to births, marriages, divorces, fetal deaths and deaths as authorized under RSA 5-C:6.

V. Births occurring outside an institution under RSA 5-C:11, III.

VI. Birth certificates for foreign-born children adopted in New Hampshire under RSA 5-C:16, I.

VII. Disclosure of certain information under RSA 5-C:17, V.

5-C:9 Seal of Registrar. The registrar shall have a seal which shall be like the seal of the state except that the device thereon shall be surrounded by the words "New Hampshire Department of State, Registrar of Vital Records" in the place of the words "Seal of the State of New Hampshire, 1776."

5-C:10 Authenticated Copies. Every certificate or other official paper executed by the registrar under seal, in pursuance of authority conferred by law, shall be received as evidence, and may be recorded in the proper recording offices in the same manner and with like effect as a legally acknowledged deed; and copies of papers and records in his or her office, so authenticated, shall be received as evidence with the same effect as the originals.

5-C:11 Birth Registration.

I. The division shall maintain a central record of all births occurring in the state of New Hampshire.

II. When a birth occurs in an institution or en route to an institution, the person in charge of the institution or a designated representative shall obtain the personal data, secure the signatures required on a birth worksheet provided by the division, and file electronically a birth record with the state of New Hampshire, division of vital records administration within 6 days of the birth. The physician in attendance shall provide the medical information required by the worksheet and certify to the facts of birth within 72 hours after the birth. If the attending physician does not certify to the facts of birth within the required 72 hours, the chief of obstetrics or the chief of the medical staff shall complete and certify the birth worksheet.

III. When a birth occurs outside an institution the necessary facts shall be obtained and processed under the rules adopted by the secretary of state.

IV. Either of the parents of the child or other informant shall certify the accuracy of the personal data provided and sign the worksheet in time to permit the filing of the birth record within the 6 days required by this section.

V. In the case of a child born of unwed parents, the legal portion of the birth certificate shall not contain any reference or specific statement to the fact that the child was born of unwed parents, or to the marital status of the parents.

VI.(a) Except as provided in subparagraphs (b) and (c), the registrar shall obtain the social security identification numbers of both parents of the newborn child at the time the vital statistics information authorized by this section is obtained.

(b) Social security numbers of the parents shall not be obtained when the child is born of unwed parents and paternity has not been established pursuant to RSA 168-A; provided, however, that if paternity is subsequently established by court order or affidavit of paternity and the birth certificate is modified pursuant to RSA 5-C:12, III or IX, the registrar shall then request the social security numbers of both parents.

(c) A parent who does not have a social security number at the time of the initial information request shall sign a declaration attesting to such fact and submit such document to the registrar.

(d) The parental social security numbers shall not appear on the face of the birth certificate itself.

(e) The social security numbers obtained pursuant to this paragraph shall be confidential and shall be disclosed only to the office of child support enforcement services, department of health and human services, solely for the purpose of enforcing a child support order in effect in this state.

(f) Refusal of a parent to provide a social security number pursuant to subparagraph (a) or (b) shall not be grounds for refusal to issue a birth certificate. The preceding sentence shall appear in writing on the forms used by the division to collect information for birth certificates.

5-C:12 Names on Certificates of Birth; Affidavits of Paternity.

I. If the mother was married at the time of either conception or birth or anytime between conception and birth and:

(a) There is no dispute as to paternity, the name of the husband shall be entered on the certificate as the father of the child. The surname of the child shall be any name chosen by the parents; provided, however, that if the parents are separated or divorced at the time of the child's birth, the choice of surname rests with the parent who has actual custody following birth.

(b) A situation arises whereby the mother claims that the father of the child is not her husband, and the husband agrees to such a claim, and the putative father agrees to such a statement, then a 3-party affidavit of paternity may be signed by the respective parties and duly notarized. This will allow the name of a nonhusband to be placed on the birth certificate as the father and the surname of the child shall be any name chosen by the mother.

(c) A question of paternity determination arises which is not resolved under subparagraph (b), it shall be settled by a court of competent jurisdiction.

II. If the mother was not married at the time of either conception or birth or between conception and birth, the name of the father shall not be entered on the certificate of birth unless an affidavit of paternity is signed by the mother and father and duly notarized, in which case the surname of the child shall be any name chosen by the mother and father.

III. When an affidavit of paternity is executed in a hospital or birthing center, or before a midwife, the following procedure shall apply:

(a) A hospital, birthing center, or midwife shall provide to an unmarried mother of a live child born in a hospital, birthing center, or other location, an affidavit of paternity that can be completed by the child's mother and father to acknowledge paternity of a child, which affidavit shall be notarized by the hospital or birthing center staff if the birth occurs in a hospital or birthing center. Before a mother and a putative father can sign an affidavit of paternity, they shall be given oral and written notice of the legal consequences of signing the affidavit, including the resulting rights and responsibilities, and the alternatives to acknowledging paternity by affidavit. If one parent is a minor, notice shall include any rights afforded by minority status.

(b) When a mother and father sign an affidavit of paternity, a hospital, birthing center, or midwife shall:

(1) Complete the affidavit of paternity and forward the record to the division; and

(2) File a copy of the affidavit of paternity with the department of health and human services, office of child support enforcement services, at the address indicated on the affidavit of paternity.

(c) For each affidavit of paternity signed and filed in accordance with this paragraph, the department of health and human services shall reimburse the hospital, birthing center, or midwife in an amount authorized by federal law.

(d) The department of health and human services shall develop and distribute to a hospital, birthing center, or midwife free of charge the affidavit of paternity forms, information on the purpose and completion of the form, and information on the rights and responsibilities of the parents, and shall provide assistance and training to staff assigned responsibility for providing the information.

IV. When an affidavit of paternity is executed and filed with the clerk of the town where the birth occurs, the following procedures shall apply:

(a) In those instances where an affidavit of paternity is completed by the parents of the child and filed directly with the clerk of the town where the birth occurs, the clerk of the town shall forward a copy of the affidavit of paternity to the department of health and human services, office of child support enforcement services, at the address indicated on the affidavit of paternity and shall forward the electronic record to the division. Before a mother and a putative father may sign an affidavit of paternity, they shall be given oral and written notice of the legal consequences of signing the affidavit, including the resulting rights and responsibilities and the alternatives to acknowledging paternity by affidavit. If one parent is a minor, notice shall include any rights afforded by minority status.

(b) The department of health and human services shall develop and distribute to a clerk of the town free of charge the affidavit of paternity forms, information on the purpose and completion of the form, and information on the rights and responsibilities of the parents, and shall provide assistance and training to staff assigned responsibility for providing the information.

V. The division shall link an electronic record of an affidavit of paternity with the original birth record of the child.

VI. An affidavit of paternity signed pursuant to this section shall be considered a legal finding of paternity, subject to the right of any signatory to rescind the acknowledgment within the earlier of:

(1) Sixty days; or

(2) The date of an administrative or judicial proceeding relating to the child, including a proceeding to establish a support order, in which the signatory is a party.

VII. Written notice of rescission shall be sent to the clerk of the town in which the birth occurred, with a copy to the office of child support enforcement services at the address indicated on the affidavit, no later than 60 days after the affidavit is signed. After expiration of the rescission period, the signed affidavit of paternity may be challenged in court only on the basis of fraud, duress, or material mistake of fact, with the burden of proof upon the challenger, and under which the legal responsibilities (including child support obligations) of any signatory arising from the acknowledgment shall not be suspended during the challenge, except for good cause shown.

VIII. When an affidavit of paternity has been properly completed and the certificate of birth has been filed accordingly, and the acknowledgment has not been rescinded pursuant to this section, any further modification of the birth certificate regarding the paternity of the child shall require an order from a court of competent jurisdiction.

IX. In any case in which paternity of a child is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction, the name of the father and surname of the child shall be entered on the certificate of birth in accordance with the finding and order of the court. Each final order affecting a determination of parentage of a minor child shall be forwarded by the court to the clerk of the town or city in which the birth occurred for entry on the birth certificate. The surname of the child shall remain unchanged unless otherwise designated in the court order.

X. In all other cases, the surname of the child shall be any name chosen by the mother.

XI. If the father is not named on the certificate of birth, no other information about the father shall be entered on the certificate.

XII. The secretary of state shall adopt rules relative to implementing the secretary's duties under this section.

5-C:13 Report of Marriage. Every person who solemnizes a marriage shall make a record of it and of all the facts required by the department and, within 6 days thereafter, shall forward it to the town clerk who issued the marriage license. The town clerk shall forward the report of marriage to the division.

5-C:14 Preservation of Returns. The registrar shall cause the returns made to him or her under the preceding sections and the returns of divorces made by the clerks of court to be arranged, alphabetical indexes of all the names contained in such returns to be made, and the whole to be bound in convenient volumes and preserved in his or her office. Records of births, marriages, deaths, and divorces shall be kept separately.

5-C:15 Birth Registration Cards.

I. The registrar or a town clerk may issue, in accordance with the provisions of RSA 5-C:17, a card containing information relative to the date and place of birth of such persons as may be on record with the division. The fee for the issuance of any such card shall be \$12. However, under no circumstances shall any information relative to any adoption be disclosed or given out by the registrar, or the town clerk, or any other individual except pursuant to RSA 170-B:19, II, except that a birth certificate which does not indicate that the certificate has been amended or that an individual has been adopted may be issued.

II. The town clerk shall forward \$6 of each fee collected under this section to the state treasurer for deposit in the vital records improvement fund established under RSA 5-C:25. The town clerk shall retain the remaining \$4 as a fee for issuing such birth registration card.

5-C:16 Birth Certificate for Foreign-Born Children Adopted in New Hampshire.

I. The registrar shall establish in accordance with rules adopted by the secretary of state a New Hampshire certificate of birth for a person born in a foreign country and for whom a final decree of adoption has been issued by a court of competent jurisdiction in New Hampshire. This certificate of birth shall be established and registered and a certified copy of such certificate issued when he or she receives a request and a fee of \$25 from the adoptive parents or adopted person over 18 for such a certificate and a report of the adoption as provided in RSA 170-B:18. Funds paid to the registrar shall be forwarded to the state treasurer for deposit into the vital records improvement fund established under RSA 5-C:25.

II. The birth certificate established according to this section shall show the true or probable foreign country of birth, and shall state that the certificate is not evidence of United States citizenship for the child for whom it is issued or for the adoptive parents.

III. The registrar shall not establish a New Hampshire certificate of birth if the court decreeing the adoption, the adoptive parents, or the adopted person if 18 years of age or older requests that the certificate not be established.

IV. Any birth certificate established under this section shall not be deemed a record within the meaning of RSA 170-B:19.

5-C:17 Disclosure of Information from Vital Records. In order to protect the integrity of vital records, to ensure their proper use, and to ensure the efficient and proper administration of the system of vital statistics the registrar or the custodian of permanent local records shall not permit inspection of, or disclose information contained in vital statistics records, or copy or issue a copy of all or part of any such record unless he or she is satisfied that the applicant has a direct and tangible interest in such record. However, under no circumstance shall any information relative to any adoption be disclosed or given out by the registrar or custodian of permanent local records or any other individual except pursuant to RSA 170-B:19, II.

I. The registrant, a member of his or her immediate family, his or her guardian, or respective legal representatives shall be considered to have a direct and tangible interest. Others may demonstrate a direct and tangible interest when information is needed for determination or protection of a personal or property right.

II. The term "legal representative" shall include an attorney, physician, funeral director, or other authorized agent acting in behalf of the registrant or his or her family.

III. Commercial firms or agencies requesting a listing of names and addresses shall not be considered to have a direct and tangible interest.

IV. Properly qualified members of the press, radio, television, and other news media shall be considered to have a direct and tangible interest in vital statistic records when the information requested by such media sources is of a public nature.

V. Disclosure of certain information and statistical data to federal, state or local agencies and research for legitimate purposes other than requests for vital records information for the purposes of health-related research under RSA 126:24-c may be authorized by the registrar under rules adopted by the secretary of state.

VI. The department of health and human services shall have a direct and tangible interest in vital records information in accordance with the provisions of RSA 126:24-c.

VII. Disclosure of voluntary acknowledgments and adjudication of paternity by judicial or administrative processes shall be released for the purposes of the state case registry pursuant to RSA 161-B:7.

5-C:18 Fees for Copies and Verifications.

I. A town clerk or the registrar shall be paid in advance, by any person requesting any copy or verification as provided in RSA 5-C:17, the sum of \$12 for making search, which sum shall include payment for the issuance of such copy or verification, and \$8 for each subsequent copy, provided that the fee to town clerks for examination of documents and issuance of a delayed birth certificate shall be \$25.

II. The town clerk shall forward \$8 of each search fee collected under this section to the department of state for deposit in the vital records improvement fund established under RSA 5-C:25 and shall retain the remaining \$4 as the clerk's fee for issuing such a copy. For subsequent copies issued at the same time, the town clerk shall forward \$5 of the fee collected for each subsequent copy under this section to the department for deposit in the vital records improvement fund established under RSA 5-C:25, and the town clerk shall retain the remaining \$3 as the clerk's fee for issuing such a copy. The town clerk shall retain the \$25 fee for a delayed birth certificate as the clerk's fee for examining documents and issuing the delayed birth certificate.

5-C:19 Furnishing to Governmental Agencies. Certified copies, certificates of partial facts, verifications or search of the records may be made for any federal, state or local governmental agency by special arrangement without regard to the provisions of RSA 5-C:18.

5-C:20 Disposal of Fees. All fees collected by the registrar under the provisions of RSA 5-C:15, and RSA 5-C:17-19, shall be paid into the state treasury but shall be held in a special fund which shall be a continuing appropriation for the department, for the use of the division.

5-C:21 Record as Evidence. A certified copy issued by a town clerk of a record of a birth, marriage, or death, on file with the town clerk or division, shall be prima facie evidence of the fact, in any judicial proceeding.

5-C:22 Correction and Amendment. Any correction or amendment to a record of any birth, marriage or death shall be made by the town clerk according to rules adopted by the secretary of state and the town clerk shall receive for amending or correcting any record the fee of \$10 to be paid by the person making application for such an amendment or correction. The town clerk shall retain the fee collected under this section for making such correction or amendment. Such fee shall be waived if the error was made by the town clerk.

5-C:23 Duties and Responsibilities; Penalties.

I. Any person having knowledge of and a direct and tangible interest in the facts shall furnish such information as he or she may possess regarding any birth, death, fetal death, marriage, or divorce upon demand of the registrar.

II. Any person shall be guilty of a class B felony if he or she:

(a) Willfully and knowingly makes any false statement in a certificate, record, or report required to be filed by statute or in an application for an amendment thereof or in an application for a certified copy of a vital record, or who willfully and knowingly supplies false information intending that such information be used in the preparation of any such report, record, or certificate, or amendment thereof; or

(b) Without lawful authority and with the intent to deceive, makes, counterfeits, alters, amends, or mutilates any certificate, record, or report required to be filed by statute or a certified copy of such certificate, record or report; or

(c) Willfully and knowingly obtains, possesses, uses, sells, furnishes, or attempts to obtain, possess, use, sell, or furnish to another, for any purpose of deception, any certificate, record, report, or certified copy thereof so made, counterfeited, altered, amended, or mutilated; or

(d) With the intention to deceive willfully and knowingly obtains, possesses, uses, sells, furnishes, or attempts to obtain, possess, use, sell, or furnish to another any certificate of birth or certified copy of a certificate of birth knowing that such certificate or certified copy was issued upon a certificate which is false in whole or in part or which relates to the birth of another person, whether living or deceased; or

(e) Willfully and knowingly furnishes or processes a certificate of birth or certified copy of a certificate of birth with the knowledge or intention that it be used for the purposes of deception by a person other than the person to whom the certificate of birth relates; or

(f) Without lawful authority possesses any certificate, record, or report, required by statute or a copy or certified copy of such certificate, record or report knowing same to have been stolen or otherwise unlawfully obtained.

III. Except as otherwise provided, any person shall be guilty of a misdemeanor if he or she willfully and knowingly transports or accepts for transportation, interment or other disposition of a dead body without an accompanying permit when required pursuant to RSA 290.

IV. Except as otherwise provided, any person shall be guilty of a violation if he or she:

(a) Willfully and knowingly refuses to provide information required by this chapter or rules adopted hereunder; or

(b) Willfully and knowingly neglects to comply with or intentionally violates any of the provisions of this section or refuses to perform any of the duties imposed upon him or her by this section.

5-C:24 Decorative Heirloom Certificates.

I. The registrar shall, upon request and payment of the fee, supply to any applicant having a direct and tangible interest as provided in RSA 5-C:17, a decorative heirloom certificate of any birth or marriage registered with him or her.

II. The decorative heirloom certificate shall be of a distinctive design and shall include the seal of the registrar and an original signature. The information on heirloom certificates shall be in accordance with rules adopted by the secretary of state.

III. The fee for each decorative heirloom certificate shall be \$25. The registrar shall forward \$15 of each fee collected to the state treasurer for deposit into the vital records improvement fund established under RSA 5-C:25.

5-C:25 Vital Records Improvement Fund. There is hereby established a special fund for the improvement and automation of vital records at the state and local levels. The sole purpose of the fund shall be to provide revenues for the improvement of the registration, certification, preservation and management of the state's vital records, and said money shall not be used for any other purpose. Moneys in the fund shall be allocated for software applications and development, preservation efforts, hardware, communications and technical support associated with these purposes. Said moneys shall not be used for rent or electricity expenses or for general clerical or administrative personnel of the division. The secretary of state shall allocate moneys in the fund with the assistance of the advisory committee established under RSA 5-C:26. The fund shall accrue interest and shall be nonlapsing and continually appropriated to the secretary of state.

5-C:26 Advisory Committee.

I. There is established an advisory committee to assist the secretary of state in administering the fund established under RSA 5-C:25. The advisory committee shall also determine the need for improvement and automation of the processing of vital records upon recommendations from representatives of the department, the New Hampshire City and Town Clerks' Association, and the division of information technology management. The members of the committee shall be appointed as follows:

- (a) Two town clerks, appointed by the New Hampshire City and Town Clerks' Association.
- (b) Two city clerks, appointed by the New Hampshire City and Town Clerks' Association.
- (c) A funeral director, appointed by the New Hampshire Funeral Directors' Association.
- (d) A physician licensed under RSA 329 from the office of chief medical examiner, or designee.
- (e) A public member, who shall have a direct interest in the registration of vital records, appointed by the department.
- (f) The registrar of vital records, or designee.
- (g) A health information specialist, appointed by the New Hampshire Hospital Association.
- (h) The director of the division of information technology management, department of administrative services, or designee.
- (i) The state archivist, or designee.
- (j) The commissioner of health and human services, or designee.
- (k) A representative of a local city public health agency, appointed by the commissioner of health and human services.
- (l) One vital records information user, who shall have a direct interest in the use and dissemination of vital records information, appointed by the commissioner of health and human services.

II. The members of the committee shall choose a chairperson by majority vote. Members of the advisory committee shall serve 2-year terms and no member shall serve more than 2 consecutive terms. The city and town clerk members shall serve staggered terms and initially one town clerk and one city clerk shall serve for 2 years and one town clerk and one city clerk shall serve for 3 years.

5-C:27 Quarterly Reports. The department shall file a financial report for the vital records improvement fund for the preceding quarter showing the summary of receipts and expenditures, according to the uniform classifications.

5-C:28 Annual Report. The department shall prepare and file a report on the uses of the vital records improvement fund and shall submit the report to the vital records improvement advisory committee no later than December 31 of each year. The report shall contain the following:

- I. The gross revenue received by the fund.
- II. A summary of receipts and expenditures, according to uniform classifications.
- III. Accomplishments achieved pursuant to RSA 5-C during the preceding fiscal year.
- IV. An outline of the projects and programs to be conducted in the ensuing fiscal year with proceeds from the funds.
- V. Any recommendations for additional legislation, and other relevant matters.

3 Reference Change. Amend RSA 126:27, IV to read as follows:

IV. User fees which shall be assessed persons requesting data under RSA [~~126:14, V,~~] 126:28, 126:30, and 141-B:9.

4 Reference Changes. Amend RSA 6:12, I(tt) to read as follows:

(tt) Moneys received from the town clerk under RSA [~~126:13, H~~] **5-C:15, II**, and by the department of [~~health and human services~~] **state** under RSA [~~126:15, H~~] **5-C:18, II**, which shall be credited to the vital records improvement fund established in RSA [~~126:31~~] **5-C:25**.

5 Reference Change. Amend RSA 33-A:4-a, I(e) to read as follows:

(e) The ~~[state]~~ registrar of vital records ~~[and health statistics]~~.

6 Reference Changes. Amend RSA 168-A:2, I(b) to read as follows:

(b) An affidavit of paternity with the clerk of the town where the birth of the child occurred pursuant to RSA ~~[126:6-a]~~ **5-C:12**, I(b) or II. The affidavit of paternity shall have the legal effect of establishing paternity without requiring further action pursuant to this chapter, unless rescinded pursuant to RSA ~~[126:6-a; H-d]~~ **5-C:12, VI**.

7 Reference Changes. Amend RSA 168-A:2, V to read as follows:

V. Upon determining paternity, the court shall provide a copy of the order to the ~~[bureau]~~ **department of state, division** of vital records ~~[and health statistics]~~ **administration**, except that the office of child support enforcement services shall provide the copy to the ~~[bureau]~~ **department of state, division** of vital records ~~[and health statistics]~~ **administration** in cases initiated by the department **of health and human services**.

8 Reference Changes. Amend RSA 168-A:13 to read as follows:

168-A:13 Social Security Numbers. At the conclusion of a paternity action filed pursuant to this chapter in which paternity is established, the court shall also order the mother and father to supply their social security numbers to the registrar of vital records~~[and health statistics]~~, in accordance with RSA ~~[126:6]~~ **5-C:11**, and to the department of health and human services.

9 Reference Change. Amend RSA 170-B:2, XIII(a) to read as follows:

(a) The person designated as the father pursuant to RSA ~~[126:6-a]~~ **5-C:12** on that child's birth certificate; or

10 Reference Changes. Amend RSA 170-B:18, I to read as follows:

I. Within 7 days after the final decree is filed, the register of probate shall send to the town clerk of the town where the adopted person was born, **the department of state, division of vital records administration**, and to the commissioner **of health and human services** by mail a report of the adoption. The ~~[bureau of vital records and health statistics]~~ **division of vital records administration**, department of ~~[health and human services]~~ **state**, shall provide suitable forms for such reports.

11 Reference Changes. Amend RSA 170-B:19, II to read as follows:

II. All papers and records, including birth certificates, pertaining to the adoption, whether part of the permanent record of the court or of a file in the division, in an agency or office of the town clerk or the ~~[bureau]~~ **division** of vital records ~~[and health statistics]~~ **administration** are subject to inspection only upon written consent of the court for good cause shown, except as otherwise provided in this section. Upon the request of an adoptee over 21 years of age, or a natural parent of an adoptee over 21 years of age, for information concerning the adoptee or natural parent, the court shall refer the adoptee or natural parent to the child-placing agency which completed the investigation required under RSA 170-B:14.

12 Reference Changes. Amend RSA 170-C:14, II to read as follows:

II. All papers and records, including birth certificates, pertaining to the termination, whether part of the permanent record of the court or of a file in the department, in an agency or office of the town clerk or the ~~[bureau]~~ **division** of vital records ~~[and health statistics]~~ **administration** are subject to inspection only upon written consent of the court for good cause shown.

13 Reference Changes. Amend RSA 215-A:32-a, I to read as follows:

I. The executive director shall report annually to the registrar of vital records ~~[and health statistics]~~ pursuant to RSA ~~[126:4]~~ **5-C:2** on any deaths or injuries occurring in the state related to the operation of OHRVs.

14 Reference Changes. Amend RSA 290:1 to read as follows:

290:1 Death Records. Whenever a person shall die, the physician attending at the last sickness shall complete and deliver to the funeral director, next-of-kin as defined in RSA 290:16, IV, or designated agent under RSA 290:17 or shall complete electronically and forward immediately to the ~~[bureau]~~ **division** of vital records

~~[and health statistics]~~ **administration**, a death record, duly signed, setting forth, as far as may be, the facts required by rules of the department of ~~[health and human services]~~ **state, division of vital records administration** as provided in RSA ~~[126:2]~~ **5-C:8**. The cause or causes of death shall be printed or typed on all records required to be furnished under this section. The funeral director, next-of-kin, or designated agent shall transmit electronically the record of death to the ~~[bureau]~~ **division** of vital records ~~[and health statistics]~~ **administration**.

15 Reference Changes. Amend RSA 290:1-b to read as follows:

290:1-b Pronouncement of Death by Registered Nurses. If an anticipated death occurs in a hospital, a nursing home, a private home served by a home health care provider licensed under RSA 151, or a hospice, the registered nurse attending at the last sickness may pronounce the person dead and release the body to the funeral director, next-of-kin as defined in RSA 290:16, IV, or designated agent after certifying the fact of death and completing the death record by hand or other approved electronic process. If a contagious disease is known to be present at the time of death, that fact shall be indicated on the death record in accordance with rules adopted by the ~~[commissioner of the department of health and human services]~~ **secretary of state** as provided in RSA ~~[126:2]~~ **5-C:8**.

16 Reference Changes. Amend RSA 290:3 to read as follows:

290:3 Burial Permits, Obtaining. It shall be the duty of the funeral director, next-of-kin as defined in RSA 290:16, IV, or designated agent under RSA 290:17 to add to the death record the date and place of burial, and having certified the same by hand or other approved electronic process, to forward it to the ~~[bureau]~~ **division** of vital records ~~[and health statistics]~~ **administration** or as otherwise directed by the ~~[state]~~ registrar **of vital records**, and to obtain a permit for burial from the ~~[bureau]~~ **division** of vital records ~~[and health statistics]~~ **administration** in accordance with rules adopted by the ~~[commissioner of the department of health and human services]~~ **secretary of state**, under RSA ~~[126:3]~~ **5-C:8**. In case of a contagious or infectious disease the record shall be completed and transmitted immediately.

17 Reference Changes. Amend RSA 290:3-b to read as follows:

290:3-b Emergency Burial Permit The ~~[bureau]~~ **division** of vital records ~~[and health statistics]~~ **administration**, department of ~~[health and human services]~~ **state**, may issue an emergency burial permit in an emergency as defined by rules adopted by the ~~[commissioner of the]~~ department of ~~[health and human services]~~ **state** pursuant to RSA ~~[126:3]~~ **5-C:8**.

18 Reference Changes. Amend RSA 290:8 to read as follows:

290:8 Prerequisites. No such permit shall be issued until there has been delivered to the ~~[bureau]~~ **division** of vital records ~~[and health statistics]~~ **administration** a death record completed in accordance with RSA 290:1.

19 Reference Changes. Amend RSA 457:7 to read as follows:

457:7 Granting of Permission Such justice or judge shall at once hear the parties, and, if satisfied that special cause exists making such marriage desirable, shall grant permission therefor, which shall be filed with the court and shall be reported to the ~~[bureau]~~ **division** of vital records ~~[and health statistics]~~ **administration**. The ~~[bureau]~~ **division** shall note the fact of the granting of such permission upon the certificate and upon all copies thereof which are by law required to be kept.

20 Reference Changes. Amend RSA 457:22 to read as follows:

457:22 Completion of Marriage License Application. All persons proposing to be joined in marriage within the state shall complete a marriage license application with all facts required by rules of the department of ~~[health and human services]~~ **state, division of vital records administration** as provided in RSA ~~[126]~~ **5-C**, to be entered in any town clerk's office. The clerk shall record the application in a book to be kept for that purpose.

21 Reference Change. Amend RSA 457:38 to read as follows:

457:38 Certified Copy of Record. A copy of the record of a marriage, certified by a city or town clerk or by the registrar of vital records ~~[and health statistics]~~, shall be received in all courts and places as evidence of the fact of the marriage.

22 Reference Change. Amend RSA 458:15 to read as follows:

458:15 Clerks' Returns. The clerks of the superior court shall, in their respective counties at which divorces are granted, make monthly returns to the registrar of vital records ~~[and health statistics]~~.

23 Reference Change. Amend RSA 458:25 to read as follows:

458:25 Return of List. The clerk of the superior court for each county, at the end of each term of court, shall return to the registrar of vital records ~~[and health statistics]~~ a full and correct list of all changes of names that have been decreed hereunder by the court since the last return.

24 Reference Change. Amend RSA 458:30 to read as follows:

458:30 Returns. The clerk of the superior court shall make return of all such decrees of separation and declarations of the resumption of marital relations to the registrar of vital records ~~[and health statistics]~~ in the manner provided for the return of divorces.

25 New Subdivision; Bureau of Health Statistics and Data Management. Amend RSA 126 by inserting after section 24 the following new subdivision:

Bureau of Health Statistics and

Data Management and Institutional Review Board

126:24-a Definitions. In this chapter:

- I. "Board" means the institutional review board, established in RSA 126:24-e.
- II. "Commisioner" means the commisioner of the department of health and human services.
- III. "Department" means the department of health and human services.

126:24-b Intent. The bureau of health statistics and data management within the department is designated the health statistics center of New Hampshire in accordance with PL95-623 section V(c)(1). The bureau is authorized to coordinate and disseminate health-related information for the purposes of protecting public health while adhering to privacy requirements. In carrying out its duties, the department shall use the minimum amount of information that is reasonably necessary to protect the health of the public.

126:24-c Access to Information from Vital Records for Public Health Purposes. The department shall have a direct and tangible interest in vital records data including personal identifiers. The secretary of state shall provide continuous electronic access to the department of the entire contents of the data files on a 24-hour, 7-day per week basis. If a means of electronic access becomes possible that will allow access at a faster rate than a 24-hour, 7-day per week basis, the department may utilize such new means of access, provided that it assumes the full cost of implementing the new means of access. Such access shall be provided in standard database format that establishes a remote electronic link from the secretary of state's office to the department that would not restrict the ability of the department to transfer data. However, under no circumstance shall any information relative to any adoption or any restricted record as determined by a court of law be provided to the department.

126:24-d Disclosure of Information from Vital Records. All protected health information possessed by the department shall be considered confidential, except that the commissioner shall be authorized to provide vital record information to institutions and individuals both within and outside of the department who demonstrate a need for such information for the purpose of conducting health-related research. Any such release shall be conditioned upon the understanding that once the health-related research is complete that all information provided will be returned to the department or destroyed. All releases of information shall be consistent with the federal Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (public law 104-191 (HIPAA)) and regulations promulgated thereunder by the United States Department of Health and Human Services (45 CFR Part 160 and Part 164). This shall include the requirement that all proposed releases of vital records information to institutions and individuals both within and outside the department for the purposes of health-related research be reviewed and approved by the institutional review board, under RSA 126:24-e, before the requested information is released.

126: 24-e Institutional Review Board.

I. There is hereby established an independent institutional review board administratively attached, pursuant to RSA 12-G:10, to the department to review requests for vital records information for the purposes of conducting health-related research. No vital records information requested for the purposes of conducting health-related research shall be released until the request has first been reviewed and approved by the board.

II. The board shall have 6 members, with varying backgrounds to promote complete and adequate review of health-related research activities. The commissioner shall appoint 3 of the members and the secretary of state shall appoint 3 members. The board shall be sufficiently qualified through the experience and expertise of its members, and the diversity of the members to promote respect for its advice and counsel in

safeguarding the privacy and confidentiality of vital records information that is used for the purposes of health-related research. In addition to possessing the professional competence necessary to review specific health-related research activities, the board shall be able to ascertain the acceptability of proposed research in terms of applicable law, regulations, and standards of professional conduct and practice. The board shall therefore include persons knowledgeable in these areas.

III. The board shall include at least one member whose primary concerns are in the area of public health research activities and at least one member whose primary concerns are in nonpublic health areas.

IV. The board shall include at least 2 members who are not otherwise affiliated with either the department or the department of state and who are not part of the immediate family of a person who is affiliated with either the department or the department of state.

V. No member of the board shall participate in initial or continuing review of any health-related research project in which the member has a conflicting interest, except to provide information requested by the board.

VI. The board may, in its discretion, invite individuals with competence in special areas to assist in the review of issues which require expertise beyond or in addition to that possessed by the members of the board. These individuals may only offer advice and guidance and shall not participate in the decision as to whether or not to approve the release of vital records information for the purposes of health-related research.

126:24-f Rulemaking. The commissioner may adopt rules, pursuant to RSA 541-A, relative to:

I. With the exception of vital records, guidance and direction in the collection and accuracy of statistical and medical information by data collectors.

II. Procedures, conditions, and criteria for release of information, under RSA 126:24-c.

126:24-g Advisory Committee on Quality of Vital Records Information.

I. There is established an advisory committee to assist the secretary of state in assuring and improving the quality of vital records electronic information. The committee shall meet annually or at the call of the chair. The members of the committee shall be appointed as follows:

(a) A town or city clerk, appointed by the New Hampshire City and Town Clerks' Association.

(b) A funeral director, appointed by the New Hampshire Funeral Directors' Association.

(c) A physician licensed under RSA 329, appointed by the board of medicine.

(d) One vital records information user, who shall have a direct interest in the use and dissemination of vital records information, appointed by the commissioner.

(e) The registrar of vital records, or designee.

(f) A health information specialist, appointed by the New Hampshire Hospital Association.

(g) The commissioner or designee.

II. The members of the committee shall choose a chairperson by majority vote. Members of the advisory committee shall serve 2-year terms and no member shall serve more than 2 consecutive terms.

126:24-h Penalty. Any person shall be guilty of a class B felony if he or she willfully and knowingly furnishes or disseminates vital records information in a manner inconsistent with the purposes for which it was released.

26 Repeals. The following are repealed:

I. RSA 126:1 through 126:24, relative to vital records and health statistics.

II. RSA 126:30-a through 126:32, relative to vital records and health statistics.

27 Contingency. This act shall take effect on the date upon which 2003, HB 1-A, an act making appropriations for the expenses of certain departments of state for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2004, and June 30, 2005, takes effect.

28 Effective Date.

I. Section 27 of this act shall take effect upon its passage.

II. The remainder of this act shall take effect as provided in section 27 of this act.

Senate Transportation
March 12, 2003
2003-0675s
06/09

Amendment to SB 142-FN

Amend the bill by replacing section 1 with the following:

1 Advertisements Prohibited. RSA 236:75 is repealed and reenacted to read as follows:

236:75 Advertisements Upon Certain Objects Prohibited.

I. In this section:

(a) "Advertisement" shall mean any advertisement or sign, including but not limited to leaflets and flyers.

(b) "Object owner" shall mean the owner or joint owners of any object.

(c) "Advertisement owner" shall mean the owner of any advertisement and shall also include any person who places any advertisement on an object in violation of this section.

(d) "Object" shall mean any object of nature, utility pole, street light, telephone booth, traffic control device, highway sign, or highway appurtenance.

II. Notwithstanding any provisions of the law to the contrary, it shall be unlawful to affix, attach, or display any advertisement upon any object, directly in such a manner that the object is utilized as an integral part of the sign's support as distinguished from being only incidentally a support to the sign, such as the earth or ground upon which a sign is affixed. This prohibition shall extend to all primary and secondary highways and roads of and within the state without exception for any type of advertising. This prohibition shall not extend to the placement of advertisements when such placement has been specifically approved by the object owner. The owner of any object upon which an advertisement is placed in violation of this section shall be entitled to remove and destroy the advertisement, at the expense of the advertisement owner, without prior notice to the advertisement owner, and the advertisement owner shall not be entitled to damages or compensation therefor. The object owner shall be entitled to payment by the advertisement owner for the costs associated with removal and destruction of the advertisement by that object owner or the object owner's agents or employees. Any municipality may remove and dispose of any advertisement placed on an object within a municipality's public right of way in violation of this section, without prior notice to the advertisement owner.

III. Whoever violates this section shall be guilty of a misdemeanor if a natural person or a felony if any other person.

2003-0675s

AMENDED ANALYSIS

This bill prohibits advertisements, leaflets, or flyers, on natural objects, utility poles, street lights, telephone booths, traffic lights, highway appurtenances, or highway signs without the approval of the object's owner and increases the penalty for violations. It also allows municipalities to remove advertisements in the public right of way without notice to the advertisement owner.

Interstate Cooperation
March 13, 2003
2003-0699s
03/04

Amendment to SB 215-FN

Amend RSA 664:14, IV(c) as inserted by section 2 of the bill by replacing it with the following:

(c) Any political advertising in the form of a prerecorded message transmitted by telephone shall, within the first 60 seconds of the message, disclose the name and telephone number of the candidate, committee, or other person paying for the telephone call.

Amend the bill by inserting after section 2 the following and renumbering the original section 3 to read as 4:

3 New Paragraph; Political Advertising; Signature, Identification, and Lack of Authorization. Amend RSA 664:14 by inserting after paragraph VI the following new paragraph:

VII. Any person who knowingly causes any communication that violates this section to be received within the state of New Hampshire shall be guilty of a misdemeanor if a natural person or shall be guilty of a felony if any other person.

2003-0699s

AMENDED ANALYSIS

This bill requires that any political advertising in the form of a prerecorded telephone message disclose the name and telephone number of the candidate, committee, or other person paying for the telephone call. This bill also requires that violations of the political advertising identification law meet a knowing standard of conduct for criminal penalties to apply.

Public Institutions, Health and Human Services

March 12, 2003

2003-0657s

05/03

Amendment to SB 216-FN-A

Amend the bill by replacing section 1 with the following:

1 Appropriation; Funding Developmental Services Priority Waiting List. The sum of \$2,650,000 for fiscal year ending June 30, 2004, and \$2,650,000 for fiscal year ending June 30, 2005, is hereby appropriated to the department of health and human services, division of developmental services, to fund the waiting list for services for individuals with developmental disabilities who are identified as priority level one, as defined in section 2. The governor is authorized to draw a warrant for said sums out of any money in the treasury not otherwise appropriated.

Senate Executive Departments and Administration

March 13, 2003

2003-0711s

08/10

Amendment to SB 226-LOCAL

Amend the bill by replacing section 1 with the following:

1 Homesteads; Amount Increased. Amend RSA 480:1 to read as follows:

480:1 Amount. Every person is entitled to [~~\$50,000~~] **\$100,000** worth of his or her homestead, or of his or her interest therein, as a homestead. The homestead right created by this chapter shall exist in manufactured housing, as defined by RSA 674:31, which is owned and occupied as a dwelling by the same person but shall not exist in the land upon which the manufactured housing is situated if that land is not also owned by the owner of the manufactured housing.

HEARINGS

TUESDAY, MARCH 18, 2003

BANKS, Room 103, SH

Sen. Flanders (C), Sen. Peterson (VC), Sen. Barnes, Sen. Foster, Sen. Odell

(NOTE THE TIME CHANGES TO THE FOLLOWING HEARINGS)

1:15 p.m.	SB 178 , relative to guaranty funds.
1:35 p.m.	SB 99 , relative to high cost mortgage loans.
1:55 p.m.	SB 180 , making certain changes in the banking laws.
2:15 p.m.	SB 181 , relative to investigations by and license revocation appeals to the board of trust company incorporation.
2:35 p.m.	SB 72 , relative to the regulation of title loans and payday loans.

(THE PREVIOUS HEARING FOR SB 72 WAS RECESSED FEBRUARY 18TH)
EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY FOLLOW

ENERGY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, Room 102, LOB

Sen. Odell (C), Sen. Below (VC), Sen. Gallus, Sen. Gatsas, Sen. Prescott

3:00 p.m. **SCR 3**, urging maintenance of funding for the Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program.3:15 p.m. **SB 230**, relative to transition service and relative to the sale of PSNH generation assets.**EXECUTIVE SESSION TO TAKE PLACE BEFORE AND AFTER HEARINGS****FINANCE**, Room 103, SH

Sen. Green (C), Sen. Boyce (VC), Sen. Below, Sen. D'Allesandro, Sen. Eaton, Sen. Gatsas, Sen. Odell

10:15 a.m. **SB 90-FN**, increasing the cap for relocation assistance for businesses in eminent domain proceedings.10:30 a.m. **SB 91**, extending the committee to study eminent domain proceedings and adding certain duties.10:45 a.m. **SB 129**, relative to the board of tax and land appeals and eminent domain cases.11:00 a.m. **SB 161**, relative to procedures in eminent domain proceedings.**EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY FOLLOW****INSURANCE**, Room 101, LOB

Sen. Flanders (C), Sen. Prescott (VC), Sen. Cohen, Sen. Martel, Sen. Roberge

8:30 a.m. **SB 21**, relative to health insurance riders.9:15 a.m. **SB 110**, relative to small group health insurance coverage.10:00 a.m. **SB 174**, relative to scheduled permanent impairment awards under workers' compensation.**EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY FOLLOW****JUDICIARY**, Room 105-A, SH

Sen. Peterson (C), Sen. Foster (VC), Sen. Clegg, Sen. Roberge, Sen. Sapareto

10:15 a.m. **SB 218**, establishing a study committee to examine child custody and support laws and practices in New Hampshire.10:30 a.m. **SB 211**, relative to the expungement of DNA records and multiple qualifying convictions.11:00 a.m. **SB 204**, relative to bail recovery agents.11:15 a.m. **SB 168**, allowing school boards to adjourn to nonpublic session to consider pupil disciplinary matters.**EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY FOLLOW****PUBLIC INSTITUTIONS, HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES**, Room 101, LOB

Sen. Martel (C), Sen. Boyce (VC), Sen. Estabrook, Sen. Kenney, Sen. O'Hearn

(NOTE THE TIME CHANGES TO THE FOLLOWING HEARINGS)3:15 p.m. **SB 191**, creating a committee to study establishing a prescription drug program for the elderly and disabled.3:45 p.m. **SB 153**, adopting the nurse licensure compact.4:15 p.m. **HB 104-FN**, (New Title) implementing procedures for a hospital or safe haven to assume temporary care and control of an abandoned child and creating an exception to the crime of endangering the welfare of a child.**EXECUTIVE SESSION WILL FOLLOW FOR SB 33-FN AND OTHER PENDING LEGISLATION****WILDLIFE & RECREATION**, Room 104, LOB

Sen. Gallus (C), Sen. Roberge (VC), Sen. Cohen, Sen. Gatsas, Sen. Sapareto

(NOTE THE TIME CHANGES TO THE FOLLOWING HEARINGS)

1:15 p.m. **HB 128**, relative to the treatment of horses.
 1:45 p.m. **HCR 1**, endorsing the Canine Good Citizen Program.
 2:15 p.m. **SB 106**, relative to the operation of personal watercraft.
EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY FOLLOW

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 19, 2003**EDUCATION**, Room 105-A, SH

Sen. O'Hearn (C), Sen. Johnson (VC), Sen. Foster, Sen. Green, Sen. Larsen

1:15 p.m. **EXECUTIVE SESSION ON PENDING LEGISLATION**

ENVIRONMENT, Room 104, LOB

Sen. Johnson (C), Sen. Cohen (VC), Sen. Barnes, Sen. Below, Sen. Prescott

10:15 a.m. **SB 194**, establishing a committee to study certain issues relative to large ground-water withdrawals and their effect on Darrah Pond in Litchfield.
 10:45 a.m. **SB 136**, relative to liability for hazardous materials accidents
 11:15 a.m. **SCR 4**, urging the New Hampshire congressional delegation to take appropriate action against modification of the Clean Air act if the result jeopardizes New Hampshire's ability to safeguard public health and protect environmental quality.
EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY FOLLOW

INTERSTATE COOPERATION, Room 101, LOB

Sen. Gatsas (C), Sen. Estabrook (VC), Sen. Clegg, Sen. Johnson, Sen. Sapareto

3:00 p.m. **EXECUTIVE SESSION**
SB 186-FN, relative to sale of tobacco products.

WAYS & MEANS, Room 103, SH

Sen. D'Allesandro (C), Sen. Clegg (VC), Sen. Boyce, Sen. Gallus, Sen. Odell

(NOTE THE TIME CHANGES TO THE FOLLOWING HEARINGS)

8:30 a.m. **SB 66-FN-A-L**, limiting the exemption from the meals and rooms tax for sales of alcoholic beverages by voluntary nonprofit organizations operating under one-day licenses from the liquor commission.
(THE PREVIOUS HEARING FOR SB 66 WAS RECESSED FEBRUARY 12TH)
 8:45 a.m. **SB 208-FN**, establishing a property tax cap and abatement program.
 9:15 a.m. **SB 138-FN**, clarifying the exemption from the interest and dividends tax for distributions from qualified tuition savings programs.
 9:30 a.m. **SB 117-FN-A-L**, authorizing video lottery administered by a gaming oversight authority.
EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY FOLLOW

THURSDAY, MARCH 20, 2003**FINANCE**, Room 103, SH

Sen. Green (C), Sen. Boyce (VC), Sen. Below, Sen. D'Allesandro, Sen. Eaton, Sen. Gatsas, Sen. Odell

EXECUTIVE SESSION IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING SESSION

TUESDAY, MARCH 25, 2003**INSURANCE**, Room 101, LOB

Sen. Flanders (C), Sen. Prescott (VC), Sen. Cohen, Sen. Martel, Sen. Roberge

Rescheduled **SB 184**, relative to reinsurance.
(SB 184, HAS BEEN RESCHEDULED FOR APRIL 1ST)

- Rescheduled **SB 189**, relative to certain automobile accidents.
(SB 189, HAS BEEN RESCHEDULED FOR APRIL 1ST)
- 8:30 a.m. **SB 201**, establishing a committee to study insurance practices relative to homeowner's insurance.
- PUBLIC INSTITUTIONS, HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES**, Room 101, LOB
- Sen. Martel (C), Sen. Boyce (VC), Sen. Estabrook, Sen. Kenney, Sen. O'Hearn
- Rescheduled **SB 131**, establishing a committee to study promoting the establishment of free clinics for uninsured and underinsured persons.
(SB 131 HAS BEEN RESCHEDULED FOR APRIL 1ST)
- 3:15 p.m. **SB 133**, relative to amending the charter of Dartmouth college.
(NOTE THE TIME CHANGE FOR SB 133)

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 26, 2003

EDUCATION, Room 105-A, SH

- Sen. O'Hearn (C), Sen. Johnson (VC), Sen. Foster, Sen. Green, Sen. Larsen
- 1:15 p.m. **SB 229**, making reference changes to the school building aid statutes.
- 1:30 p.m. **CACR 14**, relating to the funding of public education. Providing that the state shall fund an amount not less than 30 percent of the total average statewide expenditure for public education for kindergarten through grade 12 during the previous biennium and that the general court shall have the power to apportion this amount by statute; that the state shall assure the opportunity for an adequate public education for all pupils in the state in grades kindergarten through 12; and that no tax in any form on the value of real property shall be used to fund the state's obligation to cherish and support public education.
EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY FOLLOW

TUESDAY, APRIL 1, 2003

FINANCE, Room 103, SH

- Sen. Green (C), Sen. Boyce (VC), Sen. Below, Sen. D'Allesandro, Sen. Eaton, Sen. Gatsas, Sen. Odell
- 10:15 a.m. **SB 217-FN**, relative to the calculation of average daily membership in residence for the purpose of calculating the cost of an adequate education.
- 11:00 a.m. **SB 214-FN-A**, establishing new positions in the department of health and human services and making an appropriation therefor.
EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY FOLLOW

INSURANCE, Room 101, LOB

- Sen. Flanders (C), Sen. Prescott (VC), Sen. Cohen, Sen. Martel, Sen. Roberge
- Rescheduled **SB 201**, establishing a committee to study insurance practices relative to homeowner's insurance.
(SB 201 HAS BEEN RESCHEDULED FOR MARCH 25TH)
- 8:00 a.m. **SB 119**, relative to medical and hospital liability insurance.
(NOTE THE TIME CHANGE FOR SB 119)
- 9:30 a.m. **SB 184**, relative to reinsurance.
- 10:00 a.m. **SB 189**, relative to certain automobile accidents.
EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY FOLLOW

PUBLIC INSTITUTIONS, HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES, Room 101, LOB

- Sen. Martel (C), Sen. Boyce (VC), Sen. Estabrook, Sen. Kenney, Sen. O'Hearn
- 3:00 p.m. **SB 193**, extending the report date for the commission on the education of the deaf and hard of hearing in New Hampshire.
(NOTE THE TIME CHANGE FOR SB 193)

3:30 p.m. **SB 190**, relative to community living facilities.
 4:00 p.m. **SB 131**, establishing a committee to study promoting the establishment of free clinics for uninsured and underinsured persons.
EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY FOLLOW

MEETINGS

MONDAY, MARCH 17, 2003

NH DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (Berlin 12958A NH Route 110)

7:30 p.m. Berlin City Hall Auditorium Councilmen Meeting
 168 Main Street, Berlin, NH

TUESDAY, MARCH 18, 2003

NH CIVIL WAR MEMORIALS COMMISSION (RSA 21-K:18)

1:30 p.m. Room 203, LOB Regular Meeting

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 19, 2003

FISCAL COMMITTEE OF THE GENERAL COURT (RSA 14:30-a)

9:00 a.m. Rooms 210-211, LOB Regular Business

9:30 a.m. Rooms 210-211, LOB Audits:
 Management Letter for the State of New Hampshire For the Year Ended June 30, 2002
 State of New Hampshire
 Single Audit of Federal Financial Assistance Programs
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

FRIDAY, MARCH 21, 2003

OSTEOPOROSIS ADVISORY COUNCIL (RSA 126-I:3)

9:00 a.m. Room 205, LOB Regular Meeting

TASK FORCE ON FAMILY LAW (HB 447, Chapter 250:1, Laws of 2002)

12:00 p.m. - 2:00 p.m. Room 204, LOB Regular Meeting

MONDAY, MARCH 24, 2003

ADMINISTRATIVE RULES (RSA 541-A:2)

9:00 a.m. Rooms 306-308 LOB Regular Meeting

OIL FUND DISBURSEMENT (RSA 146-D:4)

9:00 a.m. Room 305, LOB Regular Meeting

COMMISSION TO STUDY PROBLEMS RELATED TO DELIVERY OF LOCAL ASSISTANCE (HB 1109, Chapter 184:1, Laws of 2002)

10:00 a.m. Room 301, LOB Regular Meeting

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 26, 2003

NH DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (Jefferson-Randolph 13602 Reconstruction, safety improvements & shoulder widening from NH 115 intersection east approximately 5.0 miles to Durand Road)

10:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. Randolph Town Hall Informal Discussions

2:00 p.m. - 4:00 p.m. Jefferson Town Hall Informal Discussion

NH DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (Jefferson-Randolph 13602 Reconstruction, Safety improvements & shoulder widening from NH 115 intersection east approximately 5.0 miles to Durand Road)

6:30 p.m. Jefferson Town Hall Public Informational Meeting
698 Presidential Highway
Jefferson, NH

FRIDAY, MARCH 28, 2003

ASSESSING STANDARDS BOARDS (RSA 21-J:14-a)

9:30 a.m. NH Department of Revenue Administration, Regular Meeting
Community Services Division Training Room
57 Regional Drive, Concord, NH

COMMISSION TO EXAMINE AND ASSESS THE STATUS OF CIVIC EDUCATION IN NEW HAMPSHIRE (HB 1151, Chapter 188, Laws of 2002)

10:00 a.m. Room 207, LOB Regular Meeting

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM JOINT LEGISLATIVE OVER SIGHT COMMITTEE (RSA 21-P:51)

10:00 a.m. Room 205, LOB Regular Meeting

TASKFORCE ON RE-ESTABLISHING THE LAWRENCE, MA TO MANCHESTER NH AND THE CONCORD TO LEBANON RAIL SERVICE (HB 258, Chapter 271:1, Laws of 2001)

10:00 a.m. Room 203, LOB Regular Meeting

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 2, 2003

LONG RANGE CAPITAL PLANNING AND UTILIZATION COMMITTEE (RSA 17-M:1)

9:30 a.m. Room 201, LOB Regular Meeting

FRIDAY, APRIL 11, 2003

GOVERNOR'S COMMISSION ON ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE PREVENTION, INTERVENTION, AND TREATMENT (RSA 12-J:1)

9:30 a.m. Rooms 201-203, LOB Regular Meeting

MONDAY, APRIL 14, 2003

LEGISLATIVE ETHICS COMMITTEE (RSA 14-B:2)

9:00 a.m. Room 103, SH Regular Meeting

GUARDIAN AD LITEM BOARD (RSA 490-C:1)

1:00 p.m. Room 102, LOB Regular Meeting

TUESDAY, APRIL 15, 2003

NH DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (Hudson 13743 NH 102, West Road and Robinson Road intersection improvements, turn lane, signal and truck lane)

7:00 p.m. Hudson Town Hall Combined Public Officials
12 School Street Public Informational Meeting
Hudson, NH

MONDAY, APRIL 21, 2003

ADMINISTRATIVE RULES (RSA 541-A:2)

9:00 a.m. Rooms 306-308 LOB Regular Meeting

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 30, 2003

NH DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (Nashua, 13117 Park N Ride facility and potential for future construction of a rail platform-station to provide commuter rail connections into MA)

7:00 p.m. Nashua City Hall Auditorium Public Hearing (Commission)
229 Main Street (use Elm Street door)
Nashua, NH

MONDAY, MAY 12, 2003

GUARDIAN AD LITEM BOARD (RSA 490-C:1)

1:00 p.m.

Room 102, LOB

Regular Meeting

MONDAY, MAY 19, 2003

ADMINISTRATIVE RULES (RSA 541-A:2)

9:00 a.m.

Rooms 306-308 LOB

Regular Meeting

MONDAY, JUNE 9, 2003

GUARDIAN AD LITEM BOARD (RSA 490-C:1)

1:00 p.m.

Room 102, LOB

Regular Meeting

MONDAY, JUNE 23, 2003

ADMINISTRATIVE RULES (RSA 541-A:2)

9:00 a.m.

Rooms 306-308 LOB

Regular Meeting

* * * * *

FISCAL NOTE ADDITIONS AND UPDATES HAVE BEEN AMENDED TO THE BILLS ON THE WEB SITE AND ARE AVAILABLE IN THE SENATE CLERK'S OFFICE FOR THE FOLLOWING 2003 SENATE BILLS: 14, 16, 38, 36, 38, 41, 47, 51, 56, 57, 58, 59, 63, 64, 66, 70, 71, 74, 78, 85, 80, 88, 90, 92, 95, 96, 98, 101, 102, 103, 105, 117, 118, 126, 128, 130, 132, 138, 140, 141, 142, 144, 145, 148, 149, 151, 159, 179, 186, 192, 197, 202, 205, 214, 217, 221, 222, 223, 224. HOUSE BILLS: 104

* * * * *

NOTICES

The State House cafeteria has extended its hours. It will now remain open until 4:00 p.m. from Tuesdays to Fridays until further notice. Monday hours remain the same.

Steven J. Winter, Clerk of the Senate

* * * * *

MONDAY, MARCH 17, 2003

The annual Bobby Stephen's 25th St. Patrick's Day Celebration will be held on Monday, March 17, 2003, at the Executive Court Banquet Facility, Manchester, NH. Doors open at 4:30 p.m. The cost is \$30.00 per person. All proceeds benefit Jobs for New Hampshire's Graduates.

Senator Robert E. Clegg, Jr.

Senator Carl R. Johnson

Senator Lou D'Allesandro

* * * * *

THURSDAY, MARCH 20, 2003

In celebration of the YMCA Youth in Government and Legislative Awareness Day, all legislators are cordially invited to join the New Hampshire State Alliance of YMCA's at St. Paul's Church Conference Center across the street from the State House on Thursday, March 20th during the session day lunch break (12:00 p.m.) for an informal luncheon reception. Sandwiches, hot and cold drinks, and dessert will be provided.

Senator Sylvia B. Larsen

* * * * *

TUESDAY, MARCH 25, 2003

Senator Jane O'Hearn and Representative Peter Batula, in collaboration with Real Choice Advisory Council, would like to invite all legislators to a series of presentations on topics related to community based, long term care services.

**Supporting Older Adults and Individuals with Disabilities in your Community:
An Educational Series for Legislators**

March 25, 2003

Financing Community Based Long Term Care

Presenter: David Braddock, Ph.D. Associate Vice President for Research, University of Colorado system and Executive Director of the Colmen Institute

Location: St. Paul's Church, 21 Center Street, Concord, NH

For more information or to discuss any accommodations necessary for your full participation, contact Michelle McKone at 1-800-238-2048 or memk@cisunix.unh.edu.

This series will take place over the next two years. Topics being considered for future presentations include the direct care work force shortage, affordable and accessible housing, Community engagement, faith-based initiatives and transportation.

Senator Jane E. O'Hearn

* * * * *

THURSDAY, MARCH 27, 2003

The University of New Hampshire Alumni Association & Parent Association are pleased to invite members of the New Hampshire General Court to the annual UNH Legislative Breakfast. Thursday, March 27, 2003, 7:30 a.m. – 9:00 a.m. at the New Hampshire Historical Society, Tuck Library, Park Street, Concord

Senator Iris Estabrook

* * * * *

THURSDAY, MARCH 27, 2003

In recognition of "Save Your Vision Month", The N.H. Optometric Association invites Legislators and staff to a reception on Thursday, March 27, 4:30 p.m. at the Barley House on Main Street in Concord.

Senator Robert E. Clegg, Jr.

* * * * *

THURSDAY, APRIL 10, 2003

The NH Citizens for the Arts will host a Breakfast for the Legislature at the Tuck Library on Thursday, April 10, 2003 from 7:30 a.m. – 9:30 a.m.

Senator Lou D'Allesandro

* * * * *

TUESDAY, APRIL 22, 2003

Attention senators: The Governor's Commission on Disability and the Statewide Independent Living Council are sponsoring a DISABILITY AWARENESS DAY FOR LEGISLATORS on Tuesday, April 22, 2003 at the St. Paul's Church Hall on Center Street in Concord from 9:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m. All legislators are encouraged to stop in for coffee and doughnuts and meet participants. Members of several organizations that can provide services to your constituents with disabilities will be on hand throughout the day to explain their programs/ services and answer questions. Call 1-800-852-3405, ext. 6895 (Voice/TYY) or 271-6895 for more information.

Senator Lou D'Allesandro

* * * * *

SENATE SCHEDULE 2003 SESSION

Thursday, April 10, 2003	The last day to act on all Senate bills in the first body.
Monday, May 26, 2003	Memorial Day (State Holiday)
Wednesday, June 18, 2003, 3:00 p.m.	The deadline for committee of conference report sign off.
Friday, July 4, 2003	Independence Day (State Holiday)
Monday, September 1, 2003	Labor Day (State Holiday)
Monday, October 20, 2003	Filing period for legislation to be acted on in the second half of the biennium, beginning January 2004, will commence.
Tuesday, November 11, 2003	Veteran's Day (State Holiday)
Friday, November 14, 2003, 3:00 p.m.	The office of Legislative Services shall not draft a Senate bill or joint resolution, unless a request by a member for drafting with complete information has been received.
Thursday, November 27, 2003	Thanksgiving Day (State Holiday)
Friday, November 28, 2003	Day after Thanksgiving
Friday, December 19, 2003, 3:00 p.m.	Last day to sign-off legislation for the January 2004 session.
Thursday, December 25, 2003	Christmas Day (State Holiday)

VISITORS CENTER SCHEDULE - MARCH

As a convenience to the members of the NH General Court, the Visitors' Center offers the following schedule of schools and other groups visiting the State House in **March**, 2003. These listings will replace individual notifications in an effort to reduce paper usage and to ensure all members will be notified in a timely manner. Our schedule is tightly booked for the remainder of the school year. Please contact the Visitors' Center concerning school tour booking information. Thank you for your continued participation with your School Visitation Program.

Kenneth Leidner, Director

DATE	TIME	GROUP	CLASS/Size
March 17	9:30	Peter Woodbury Elementary School – Bedford	4/23
March 17	11:00	East Kingston Elementary School	4/30
March 18	9:30 & 11:00	Maple Avenue Elementary School – Goffstown	4/50
March 18	12:30	Henniker Elementary School	4/18
March 19	9:30 & 11:00	Maple Avenue Elementary School – Goffstown	4/50
March 19	10:00 & 11:30	Moultonborough Central	4/60
March 20	9:30 & 11:00	Maple Avenue Elementary School – Goffstown	4/50
March 20	12:30	Maplewood Elementary School – Somersworth	3&4/40
March 21	9:30, 11:00 & 12:30	Jaffrey Grade School	4/40
March 21	11:00	Sarah Porter School – Langdon	3&4/19
March 24	10:30	Charlestown Primary School	4/40
March 24	12:30 & 1:45	Stratham Memorial School	4/64
March 25	9:30 & 11:00	Seabrook Elementary School	4/50
March 25	1:00	Hearts For Home Homeschool – Concord	4-8/20
March 26	9:30 & 11:00	Seabrook Elementary School	4/40
March 26	12:30 & 1:30	Paul School – Sanbornville	4/66
March 27	9:30 & 11:00	Symonds Elementary School – Keene	4/57
March 28	9:00 & 10:15	Conant Elementary School – Concord	4/60
March 28	12:30 & 1:45	Stratham Memorial School	4/44
March 31	9:30 & 11:00	Hillsboro Deering Elementary School	4/44
March 31	10:00 & 11:15	Bakersville Elementary School – Manchester	4/46
March 31	12:30 & 1:30	Cutler School – West Swanzey	4/60